
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Borough of Bellefonte Council Work Session 

AGENDA 

6:30 – 7:25 PM, Monday, October 7th, 2024 

In-Person, Large Room,  

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 

 

      VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS       

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

      www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits.   

 
I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Bernier 

 
II. WELCOMING COMMENTS / OPENING REMARKS:  

A) Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session. No council 

action (making motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.   

B) Trivia Question – Council Vice President Dann  

 
III. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 

Note – All Times are approximate  

A)  Update from Bandshell group- 30 Minutes 

B) Review of Funds, 2025 Budget Work – 25 minutes  

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 7:25 PM. The Borough Council Business Meeting is 

scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.  

 

 

 
    

 

 

http://www.cnet1.org/


1 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANING, is made and entered into this _____ day of 

___________, 2023, by and between the BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE         

(hereinafter called Borough), a body corporate and politic, established under the    

Pennsylvania Borough Code, 53 P.S. § 45101 et seq., having an address of 236 West Lamb    

Street, Bellefonte, Centre County, Pennsylvania, hereinafter call “Borough”, 

 

A N D 

 

STAGE AT TALLEYRAND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, a Pennsylvania 

unincorporated association with principal offices located at 221 West High Street, 

Bellefonte, Centre County, Pennsylvania, hereinafter called “tenant”. 

 

Borough and Tenant hereby state and confirm, as a matter of public record, the following: 

 

The Tenant has expressed interest in leasing a portion of the expanded area of Talleyrand     

Park to construct and operate a bandshell facility. This endeavor is to have no financial 

impact on the Borough, during the planning, construction, and operations of the facility  As a 

matter of due diligence, the Borough hereby expresses to  the Tenant certain conditions that 

must be met prior to a long-term Lease Agreement being entered into by the Borough.  

 

1. The Tenant will become a bona-fide IRS 501 c3 not-for-profit, legal entity organization, 

based in the Borough of Bellefonte. 

 

2. The Tenant must demonstrate that it has the financial and managerial wherewithal to 

construct and operate the bandshell for the Lease Term.  The project is to be done without 

any cost to the Borough.  

 

3. The Tenant agrees that the Leased Premises will not be used as collateral for debt of any 

kind throughout the Lease Term.    

  

4. The Tenant must have sufficient funds set aside in an interest-bearing escrow account to 

operate the bandshell facility throughout the Lease Term.  These funds shall be held in 

escrow as long as the bandshell exists on land of the Borough.  The escrow amount must 

derive a minimum 4% annual return that equals or exceeds the estimated annual 

operating, maintenance and upgrade costs of the Bandshell facility.   

 

5. Documentation by the Tenant to the Borough on the estimated annual operating costs 

must include annual operating budgets from at least three central PA bandshells of 

similar characteristics.   This documentation must be given prior to the lease being 

entered into.  On every 5th anniversary of the lease signing, the prior 5-year operating 

budgets will be reviewed by the Tenant and Bellefonte Borough.  Based on that review, 

the upcoming annual budgets, including a minimum 3% inflation cost escalator, will be 

projected and submitted to Borough Council for approval. 

 



2 
 

6. The Tenant agrees that the Leased Premises will not be assigned, underlet, or subleased 

without the written consent of the Borough.  

 

7. The exact location, footprint, legal description will be determined once the Tenant has 

met all conditions of this MOU.   

 

8. Borough will only consider a lease agreement for the footprint of the bandshell and a 

small buffer area around the bandshell.  The Tenant agrees to be responsible for 

maintaining the building and grounds within the Leased Premises.   

 

9. The Tenant acknowledges that the Borough will have priority in scheduling special 

events in the expanded area of Talleyrand Park.  

 

10. The Tenant agrees to collect and/or pay special event fees to the Borough so that the 

Parks revenues are not negatively impacted as a result of any Tenant events. 

 

11. The bandshell project may involve the former Subway sandwich shop/Snappy’s fuel 

station property currently owned by the Borough.  The Borough makes no warranties as 

to any soil conditions or environmental clearances The Tenant agrees to conduct a soil 

analysis of any proposed area of soil disturbance in order to reduce the possibility of project 

delays or unplanned expenses.  Copies of all findings must be submitted to the Borough.  The 

Tenant agrees to be financially responsible for any required soil remediation work called for in 

the soil analysis.     

 

12. The Tenant agrees to be financially responsible for all demolition and sitework costs 

associated with using the former Subway sandwich shop/Snappy’s fuel station in 

conjunction with the bandshell project.    

 

13. The Tenant understands that the expanded area of Talleyrand Park is in the current 1% 

flood risk zone as defined by FEMA. The Tenant agrees to abide by all land development 

regulations including insurances and special requirements related to flood zones.  The 

Tenant will submit documentation indicating County and Borough Planning, stormwater 

management, zoning and land development requirements have been reviewed and 

preliminarily approved.  

 

14. The Tenant agrees to comply with any requirements of any of the constituted public 

authorities, and with the terms of any state or federal statute or local ordinance or 

regulation applicable to the Leased Premises and to indemnify Borough from 

penalties, fines, costs or damages resulting from failure so to do. These ordinances 

include, but are not limited to those overseen by the Bellefonte Water Authority, the 

Centre County and Bellefonte Planning Commissions, and the Bellefonte Historical 

Architectural Review Board. 

 

15. The Tenant will produce documentation from the PA Department of Transportation 

that a Highway Occupancy Permit will be issued for the bandshell project.  If any 

highway alterations, including curb cuts, driveways, re-alignments, changes to 



3 
 

parking spaces, are required as a result of the bandshell project, the cost is the sole 

responsibility of the Tenant.   

 

16. The Tenant agrees to pay all taxes assessed or imposed upon the Leased Premises 

and/or the Building during the Term of this Lease. The Tenant must provide 

documentation from the Centre County Tax Assessment office that the leased 

premises and their operations will or will not be assessed for taxes.  If taxes are 

assessed or imposed, then the Tenant must have sufficient funds to pay annual taxes.    

If at some time in the future during the Lease Term, the Centre County Assessment 

Office determines that taxes are owed, the Tenant agrees to pay all taxes assessed or 

imposed at that time and throughout the remaining Lease Term. 

 

17.  The Tenant agrees to pay all charges for water, sewer, refuse removal, electricity, 

and any other utilities servicing the Leased Premises for the Lease Term.  

 

18. The Tenant acknowledges that this project falls under prevailing wage laws and 

agrees to follow all applicable regulations.   

 

19.  The Tenant agrees to pay all fire and flood insurance premiums upon the Leased 

Premises throughout the Lease Term as required. 

 

20. The Tenant will agree to keep in force throughout the Term of the Lease:  

a.  a Commercial General Liability insurance policy or policies to protect 

Borough against any liability to the public or to any invitee of the Tenant 

incidental to the use of or resulting from any accident occurring in or upon the 

Leased Premises with a limit of not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 

and not less than $2,000,000.00 in the annual aggregate, or such larger amount 

as Borough may prudently require from time to time, covering bodily injury 

and property damage liability and $1,000,000.00 products/completed 

operations aggregate;  

b. All Risk or Special Form coverage protecting the Tenant against loss of or 

decorations, fixtures, inventory and other business personal property situated 

in or about the Leased Premises to the full replacement value of the property 

so insured; and,  

c. Business Interruption Insurance with limit of liability representing loss of at 

least approximately six months of income.  

 

21. Each of the aforesaid policies shall  

d. be provided at the Tenant's expense;  

e. name the Borough as additional insured;  

f. be issued by an insurance company with a minimum Best's rating of "A:VII" 

during the Term; and  

g.  provide that said insurance shall not be canceled unless thirty (30) days prior 

written notice (ten days for non-payment of premium) shall have been given 

to Borough; and said policy or policies or certificates thereof shall be delivered 



4 
 

to Borough by the Tenant upon the execution of the Lease and at least thirty 

(30) days prior to each renewal of said insurance. 

 

22. The Tenant intends to be responsible for and to relieve the Borough from all liability 

by reason of any injury or damage to any person or property in the Leased Premises, 

whether belonging to the Tenant or any other person, caused by any fire, breakage or 

leakage in any part or portion of the Leased Premises, or any part or portion of the 

Building of which the Leased Premises is a part, or from water, rain or snow that may 

leak into, issue or flow from any part of the said Leased Premises, or of the Building 

of which the Leased Premises is a part. 

 

23. The Tenant intends to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Borough against any and 

all claims, actions, suits, proceedings, costs, expenses, damages, and liabilities, 

including reasonable attorney fees and costs, resulting from, arising out of, or 

connected with the Lease, with the exception of any claims based upon the alleged 

negligence of the Borough. 

 

24. The Tenant intends to be responsible for and to relieve the Borough from all liability 

by reason of any damage or injury to any person or thing which may arise from or be 

due to the use, misuse or abuse of all or any of the stage area, bathrooms, changing 

rooms, openings, stairways, walkways, hallways of any kind which may exist or 

hereafter be erected or constructed on the premises, or from any kind of injury which 

may be caused on the premises or of which the Leased Premises is a part. 

 

25. The Borough intends to allow the Leased Premises in their present condition and 

without any representation on the part of the Borough, its officers, employees, 

servants and/or agents. It is understood and agreed that the Borough is under no duty 

to make repairs or alterations at the time of letting or at any time thereafter, unless the 

need for repairs is caused by the negligence or fault of the Borough.  

 

26. The Borough intends to disclaim any and all warranties regarding the condition of the 

Leased Premises, including but not limited to the implied warranty of ground 

contamination or fitness for any particular purpose. The Tenant will accept the Leased 

Premises in their current condition and acknowledges the disclaimer contained 

herein. 

 

27. The Tenant agrees to operate the bandshell located on the Leased Premises in 

accordance with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, and agrees not to 

discriminate against any person or patron of the bandshell on the basis of race, 

religion, creed, national origin, sex, age, sexual orientation, handicap, disability, or 

any other characteristic or criteria now or hereafter determined to be illegal under any 

applicable law, rule or regulation. 

 

28. The Tenant acknowledges that Borough currently has a commercial lease with a lessee 

in the former Subway sandwich shop/Snappy’s fuel station building.  This lease 

expires on October 31st, 2024.  The Borough intends to renew this lease for a term of 



5 
 

one year or until October 31st, 2025.  In order not to create undue hardship for the 

commercial lessee, the Borough is requiring all documentation, conditions, financial 

and managerial resources, permitting requirements, and approvals to be in place by 

April 30th, 2025.  If the Tenant fails to comply to the satisfaction of the Borough, then 

the Borough reserves the right to forgo any further considerations of a lease for a 

bandshell.   

 

29. Should the Tenant back out of the lease at any time which results in the Borough having 

to take all future responsibility for the bandshell and surrounding grounds, the funds in 

the Escrow Account will be turned over in full to the Borough to maintain said property. 

 

30. A documentation checklist is included as Exhibit A. The Tenant agrees to submit 

documentation as it becomes available.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borough and Tenant have executed and acknowledged this 

Memorandum of Understanding, effective as of the date above written. 

 

WITNESS/ATTEST:  BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE 

 

 

By:  

  

Name: 
Title: 

 

        STAGE AT TALLEYRAND  

        DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

By:  

  

Name: 
Title: 



EXHIBIT A – Documentation Checklist  

 

Documentation Submitted Date 

Tenant is a legal entity, not-for-profit organization based in Bellefonte   

Tenant has the financial and managerial wherewithal to construct and 
operate the Leased Premises.   

  

Approval from County and Borough Planning, HARB, and Zoning offices   

Approval for construction in a flood zone   

Preliminary Approval for Highway Occupancy Permit from Penn DoT   

Results of soil analysis – area of disturbance    

Determination from Centre County Tax Assessment office regarding tax 
assessment  

  

Proof of insurance, indemnifications, and liability protections as outlined   

Up-to-date Project cost estimates   

Sufficient capital to undertake all design, permitting, and construction 
components, and contingencies related to the Project 

  

Sufficient capital in escrow to pay annual operating costs – at least three 
comparable bandshell annual operating budgets 

  

Centre Region Codes Inspections/ Approvals   

 

















1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Business Meeting 

7:30 PM, Monday, October 7th, 2024 

In-Person, Council Chambers  

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 

 

      VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS       

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

      www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy  

       limits.   
  

AGENDA 
 

I. 7:30 PM CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

II.      PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

III.  ROLL CALL 
 

Mr. Bernier, President, North Ward  Ms. Purnell, North Ward  

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward  Ms. Sedgwick, West   Ward  

Ms. Cleeton, South Ward  Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward  

Ms. Dann, Vice-President, South Ward   Mr. Larson, Junior Council Member  

Mr. Johnson, North Ward   Mayor Johnson, At Large  

Ms. McKean, West Ward    

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
 

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take 

official action on it with some exceptions.  The Council can act on matters relating to potential 

or real emergencies.  Council may add a matter of agency business to its agenda through a 

majority vote.  The Council should state the reason why the action item is being added to the 

agenda.  Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.cnet1.org/


2 
 

 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

 

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding action items listed on 

this meeting agenda. You must be a Bellefonte resident, non-profit representative, 

business owner, or an official representative of another governmental agency. 

Speakers shall identify themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of 

the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 

 

 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS (written) 
 

 CNET, on behalf of the Spring Creek Watershed Commission, Requesting Sponsorship Coverage of 

two meetings in 2025.  Motion/2nd for Bellefonte Borough to sponsor two Spring Creek Watershed 

Commission meetings in 2025. 

Centre County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update – workshops for local officials / stakeholders and open 

house for public / community. October 15th and 16th.   

FYI. No council action required.  

Centre County MPO Active Transportation Plan Open House, 3-4:30pm, 6-7:30pm, October 9th, COG 

Building, Gateway Drive, State College.  FYI. No action is requested.  

Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services Formal Request for Funding of ½ mill, 2025 Budget.  Council 

will consider this request as part of their work on the 2025 budget at a later date.  FYI.  No action is 

requested at this time.  

Spring Creek Watershed Commission Request for 2025 Membership Dues of $915.75. Council will 

consider this request as part of their work on the 2025 budget at a later date.  FYI.  No action is 

requested at this time. 

Article on Tamaqua Revitalization Forwarded to the Borough. FYI.  No action requested.   
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be acted upon by a 

single motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the 

Council request specific items to be removed for separate action.  
 

General Council Meeting Minutes September 16, 2024 

General  Borough Solicitor Invoice  

Finance Budget vs Actual Summary August 2024 

Finance  Budget vs Actual August 2024 

Finance  Treasurer’s Report, August 2024  

Finance  Vouchers Summary, August 2024  

 

Call for a motion/2nd to approve the Consent Agenda 
 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

IX. REPORTS 
 

Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor 

➢ Oath of Office for Police Officer Noah Bollman  

Mayor Johnson Submitted 

Jr. Council Member 

➢ September 2024 Report 

Mr. Larson Submitted 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)  

See Memo for additional information.  

 

The next Planning Commission meeting is Monday, October 14 

at 5:00 p.m. This meeting may be canceled as there are currently 

no SALDO projects for review.  

 

The next HARB meeting is Tuesday, October 22 at 8:30 a.m.  

Ms. Thompson Submitted 

X. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
 

Bellefonte Borough Authority Request for Permission to have Hydrogeological-related Studies Conducted on 

the Talleyrand Park Expanded Area.  The Authority is exploring a concept of using wells to draw the spring 

water from the ground instead of the Big Spring pond.  If ultimately successful, the cover over the Big Spring 

pond would not be needed.  Motion/2nd to approve the Bellefonte Borough Authority conducting 

Hydrogeological-related tests on the Talleyrand Park Expanded Area Property.  

Real Estate Tax Collector Software Vendor Change at Centre County Government.  A conference call with a 

County representative was held on September 25th.  Based on the information given, having the borough go 

with the County’s new vendor, GSS, may be the least confusing for the tax payer.  It is recommended to go 

with the County’s vendor, GSS. Motion/2nd to approve the Borough choosing GSS, the same software 

vendor used by the Centre County Government and to notify the County of this decision.   

Open Bids for Police Department 1st floor renovations.  Motion/2nd to have bids turned over to architect, 

awarded in consultation with borough staff.    

Centre County Liquid Fuel Grant Application.  This application is due October 18th.  Projects of 

approximately $25,000 were reviewed including the purchase of materials for the Streetlighting renovation 

work and continuation of the stamped crosswalk project.  Council may modify this motion.  Motion/2nd to 

submit an application for $25,000 to be put toward the Streetlighting renovation work.   

Water Service Line Inventory.  The water service line inventory is to be received by PA DEP on or before 

October 16th.  The Borough will comply with this due date. The Bellefonte Borough Authority is mandated to 

send out letters to customers who have unknown or lead service lines. The letters must be sent within 30 days 

of the inventory due date.  FYI. No council action is requested.   
 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Appointment of Right to Know/Open Records Officer.  Don Holderman served as the Borough’s Right to 

Know/Open Records Officer.  With his retirement, a new person needs to be appointed.  Motion/2nd to 

appoint Julie Brooks as the Right to Know/Open Records Officer.   

Penn DoT 357 Square feet of Park Property Donation Request related to bridge replacement project over 

millrace.  Council may consider action on this request or modify the motion.  Motion/2nd to approve the 

donation request as described.   

Bellefonte Borough Contributing to an Air Service Incentive Fund to help attract airlines to State College 

Regional Airport.  A contribution was pledged in the past by Bellefonte Borough.  Regional stakeholders are 

interested in creating a standing fund for this purpose. Council may take action to add this topic to a 



4 
 

future work session.   

 

XII.    PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 

 
This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on 
this meeting agenda.  Speakers shall identify themselves by name and street, 
municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three 
(3) minutes maximum. 

 

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM 
 

The Council Code of Conduct and the 2024 List of Goals/action items will be included with each 

Agenda.  

 

Executive Session:  Personnel, Legal Matters  
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

September 18, 2024 

 

 

Mr. Ralph Stewart 

Bellefonte Borough Manager 

236 West Lamb Street 

Bellefonte, PA  16823 

 

Dear Mr. Stewart, 

 

The Spring Creek Watershed Commission is an organization dedicated to the support of projects 

and programs which protect and enhance the quality of life within the Watershed.  Members of the 

Commission include twelve municipalities within the Watershed. 

 

I am writing to request that Bellefonte Borough sponsor C-NET coverage of two meetings of the 

Spring Creek Watershed Commission in 2025. Meetings of the Commission are scheduled for the 

third Wednesday of every other month. Meetings are cablecast on Channel 7, and available online at 

cnet1.org.    

 

In order for C-NET to record and televise these meetings, a C-NET member organization must 

agree to sponsor the coverage.  Sponsorship of the Commission meetings is shared among eight     

C-NET member organizations, which lessens the impact to any one member’s annual dues. 

Bellefonte Borough last sponsored meetings of the Commission in 2022. 

 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions regarding this request.  Confirmation of the 

Borough’s sponsorship may be emailed to me at chahn@cnet1.org. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Cynthia L. Hahn 

C-NET Executive Director 



Outlook

Upcoming Events for the Centre County HMP Update - With Updated Attachments

From Benne, Devon <Devon.Benne@mbakerintl.com>
Date Wed 9/11/2024 11:09 AM
To Benne, Devon <Devon.Benne@mbakerintl.com>
Cc Bodnar, Jessica <Jessica.Bodnar@mbakerintl.com>; Dool, Kyle <Kyle.Dool@mbakerintl.com>; Panunto, Bianca

<Bianca.Panunto@mbakerintl.com>; Elizabeth A. Lose <eatuck@centrecountypa.gov>; Jody L. Lair
<jllair@centrecountypa.gov>; Domer Smeltzer <dsmeltzer@centrecountypa.gov>; Ray Stolinas
<rjstolinas@centrecountypa.gov>; ehcrawford <ehcrawford@centrecountypa.gov>

4 attachments (108 KB)
Virtual Centre HMP Mitigation Strategy and Capability Assessment Meeting.ics; In-Person Centre Mitigation Strategy and
Capability Assessment Meeting.ics; Open House Social Media Language.docx; Open House Email Language.docx;

Please note that they Open House Flyer a�achment has been updated. Please use the version shared in this
email.
 

Dear Municipal Official,
 
As you may know, the Centre County Hazard Mi�ga�on Plan (HMP) update process is underway, and we have two
upcoming events that we wanted to share with you.
 

1. The Mi�ga�on Strategy and Capability Assessment Workshops – For local officials and stakeholders.
2. The Centre County HMP Public Open House – For the public.

 
We have provided detailed informa�on and ac�on items for you on both of these events below:
 
We would like to invite you to the Mi�ga�on Strategy and Capability Assessment Workshops. These workshops
are an opportunity to collaborate on a plan that is ac�onable for you and your community. We will use this �me
to review your community’s capabili�es, develop ac�ons to mi�gate risks and to be�er understand how you can
leverage the plan as a way to begin taking ac�on.
 
We will be hos�ng two workshops, one virtual and one in-person. The content of both mee�ngs with be the
same. Calendar invites have been a�ached this email. The workshops are scheduled as follows:
 

VIRTUAL IN-PERSON
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2024 WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2024

12:00 pm – 1:00 pm

Join from your computer or mobile app via this link.
o  Mee�ng ID: 238 872 111 478
o  Passcode:  4GZaTL

 Call in (audio only)
o  Phone Number: (412) 634-6334
o  Phone Conference ID:  231 707 038#

 

6:00 pm – 7:00pm

Centre County Emergency Opera�ons Center
o  Address: 420 Holmes St, Bellefonte, PA 16823
o  Room: 9

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MThkYjg5ZmMtNWJlZi00ODFlLWJmYWQtMjYwNzhjNmYzMmRk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224e1ee3db-4df6-4142-b7b9-bec15f171ca4%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22dcca63fe-ec67-4ad6-87d5-51ad75ca78a5%22%7d


IN-PERSON
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2024

5:00 pm – 7:00 pm

Centre County Emergency Opera�ons Center
o  Address: 420 Holmes St, Bellefonte, PA 16823

Room: 9
 

 
For these workshops it is highly encouraged to invite any local officials involved in planning, mi�ga�on, floodplain
management, and/or disaster preparedness so they may contribute to these discussions. Please RSVP by your
name, �tle, organiza�on, and the date of the mee�ng you plan to a�end to our Project Manager, Devon Benne,
AICP, at devon.benne@mbakerintl.com or 215-861-9311.
 
We would also like to ask for your support in adver�sing the Centre County HMP Public Open House by sharing
the a�ached materials, described below.
 

Open House Flyer – To share on social media or print and mail to community members.
Social Media Language – To post to your community’s social media or website.
Email Language – To email to any public listservs or contact lists you may have.

 
The Open House will provide an opportunity for members of the public and addi�onal stakeholders to ask
ques�ons about the plan update and provide informa�on. The schedule for this event is as follows:
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
You can stay up to date on the project and access par�cipa�on forms by visi�ng the project website at
www.pennsylvaniahmp.com/centre-hmp. We look forward to con�nuing our work with you to improve safety and
resiliency in our communi�es and appreciate your help throughout this process!
 
Sent on behalf of the Centre County Hazard Mi�ga�on Plan Steering Commi�ee:

Jody Lair, Director of Emergency Services, Centre County Office of Emergency Services
Domer Smeltzer, Deputy Director of Emergency Services, Centre County Office of Emergency Services
Ray Stolinas, Director, Centre County Planning and Community Development Office
Liz Lose, Assistant Director, Centre County Planning and Community Development Office
Elyse Crawford, Planner, Centre County Planning and Community Development Office
Devon Benne, Project Manager, Michael Baker Interna�onal

 
 

 

 

 

 

mailto:devon.benne@mbakerintl.com
https://www.pennsylvaniahmp.com/centre-hmp




We Want to Hear from You!
Centre County Active Transportation Plan

OPEN HOUSE
Wednesday, October 9, 2024

3:00 to 4:30 p.m. & 6:00 to 7:30 p.m.

2643 Gateway Drive, State College, PA 16801 – General Forum Room

Anne Messner, AICP, Senior Transportation Planner 
Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization
amessner@crcog.net or 814-231-3050

Questions? 

Draft plan available for public review at: https://www.crcog.net/centreatp

Are we on the right track?  Participate in Centre County Metropolitan Planning 
Organization’s first-ever Active Transportation Plan (ATP) by attending our open house.   

Your input on the draft plan will help guide future projects and initiatives to improve  
walking, bicycling, ATV, and horse-and-buggy travel throughout the county. 

https://www.crcog.net/centreatp


 
Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services 

 

369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte, Pa. 16823 
Office (814) 355-2907, Fax (814) 355-8702 

September 24, 2024 

 

 

Borough of Bellefonte 

Borough Council & Mayor 

301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200 

Bellefonte, Pa 16823 

 

 

Dear Council & Mayor,  

 

Bellefonte EMS is making a formal funding request for consideration in your 2025 borough budget for 

$51,055 in financial support, the equivalent of 1/2 mill (0.5 mill) based on current assessment values.  Our 

request would impact township residents $8.36 per person, $17.84 per household annually or 

$0.05/day/household.  That expenditure is a minimal price for an essential emergency service to the 

community.   

 

Municipal funding support is directed towards vehicle/equipment replacement and updates in addition to 

supporting increases towards a living wage for our staff, which currently starts at only $14.00/hr.  More 

detailed listings of expenditures are included with each quarterly/annual update provided to each 

municipality.    

   

We have heard local elected officials state that all municipalities served should contribute an equitable 

amount, we agree 100% and those concerns have been made known to each municipality as well.  Each 

year we see overall increases in funding support from the municipalities that we serve, working towards 

our requested goal.  In 2023, we saw increases from 7 out of 10 municipalities including 3 townships 

providing the full requested amounts.  For 2024 to date, we have seen 7 out of 8 municipalities contribute 

either the full requested amount or make an increase over the previous year.  In both years only 1 

municipality, different each year, reduced their contribution by small amounts.    

 

We greatly appreciate and thank you for your assistance in 2024 and past years, your continued support is 

needed so that we can provide reliable emergency response to the residents and businesses of your 

community into the future.  We believe that it is more responsible to support and improve the existing 

system than it would be to rebuild after it has collapsed. 

 

As always, I would be glad to attend a Council meeting or a budget work session to explain further or 

answer questions.  Thank you for your consideration of this important issue.   

  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

S. Scott Rhoat BS, NRP 

Executive Director/Chief    











16 Vol. 47, No. 4 | www.pa-mag.com

Revitalize It  
& They Will Come
From art and antiques to history and good eats, 
Tamaqua offers something for everyone
by Cindy Ross

I am resting on a beautifully carved oak 
bed with gracefully turned posts, a piece of 
furniture that was made in this exact brick 

building more than 100 years ago. In 1870, the 
structure served as the Conrad Bischoff Furniture 
Factory, a 6,000-square-foot Victorian industrial 
complex in Tamaqua, Schuylkill County. Today, it 
is a five-room boutique hotel of the same name, 
the Bischoff Inn. 

I had been waiting to visit the revi-
talized borough of Tamaqua for a week-
end getaway for many years, and I was 

thrilled when an overnight accommodation at this 
recently opened historic hotel became available to 
finally make such a trip possible. 

During my stay, I reveled in the inspiring story of 
Tamaqua’s revitalization while enjoying a weekend 
packed with food, fun, art and history.

Creating Community
ARTIST MARIA STABIO PURCHASED the factory in 2021, 

and with the help of community financing, she has 
reinvented the space to preserve the past while 
creating modern, comfortable lodging focused 

An aerial view of the 
Reading Blue Mountian 
and Northern Railroad’s 
newly restored Reading 
and Northern T-1 2102 
locomotive (4-8-4) as it 
passed by the station in 
Tamaqua during a test 
run in 2022 with 50 coal 
hoppers. The last time 
this engine passed the 
station was 1991.  

Schuylkill County

Round Up

MARC GLUCKSMAN, BRONX, NY



Pennsylvania Magazine | July/August 2024  17

on today’s traveler. The hand-pressed brick walls 
and wood beams above me are exposed, and I can 
spot historic graffiti on the stairways and hammer 
marks in the upright posts. Tasteful woven rugs have 
been scattered around the original wood flooring. 
On the walls, Stabio’s large modern paintings feed 
the eye and the soul.

“I wanted to honor the history of the building,” she 
says. “Anything that was integral in telling the story, 
I wanted to keep.” 

Stabio received assistance to 
create her unique hotel through 
a state program called the City 
Revitalization and Improve-
ment Zone or CRIZ, for short. 
It allows Tamaqua to leverage 
state tax dollars by reinvesting 
them in underused real estate 
to create new jobs, attract de-
velopment and encourage local 
business expansion.

Since a full breakfast is not 
included in my stay at the inn, 
I decide to wander downtown 
where I easily find places to eat, 
including at Hope and Coffee, 
a short walk away. Founder Lisa 
Scheller began this unusual cof-
fee shop with a philanthropic 
commitment to ease the grow-
ing opioid crisis occurring in 
small towns, such as Tamaqua. 

“Every day, the staff of Hope 
and Coffee strives to support, destigmatize and nor-
malize recovery from addictions by creating a warm 
and welcoming environment,” explains Scheller, who is 
a recovering addict and alcoholic herself for 40 years. 

In addition to employing those recovering from 
addiction, the shop hosts meetings on a regular basis 
to promote healing and create community. 

Coal and Railroads
TAMAQUA WAS NAMED FOR famed French and Indian 
War peace negotiator and Lenape tribe member 
“King Beaver,” who worked with Col. Henry Bou-
quet to return white prisoners at the end of the war. 

Major land and historical elements surround the 
community. The Little Schuylkill River, a designated 
Wild and Scenic Pennsylvania River, winds through 
town, and the discovery of anthracite coal in the 
region brought the railroad as a means of moving 
the commodity to market, as canals were deemed 
too difficult to construct. Originally cars were pulled 
with horses, but two years later in 1839, steam engines 
were introduced, and it became the first railroad 
in America to use steam power to haul anthracite 

coal. Such developments encouraged many eastern 
Europeans searching for a better life to come to the 
area to help build needed infrastructure. 

Trains continue to be part of the fabric of Tamaqua. 
Today, the Reading Blue Mountain and Northern 
Railroad operates both freight and tourism passenger 
services. The sound of a steam train and whistle can 
be heard from regular excursions to the nearby com-
munity of Jim Thorpe. Many use this transportation 

alternative to avoid the mountain town’s traffic and 
parking challenges. 

Fittingly, the borough’s crown jewel is the Tamaqua 
Railroad Station, which was built in 1874 by the Phila-
delphia & Reading Railroad and has been successfully 
restored and re-purposed. In 2023, the structure was 
one of five significant railroad stations in the country 
that were honored with a U.S. Postal Service stamp. 

The station closed in 1961, and with the end of 
passenger service, it was formally abandoned in 
1981. When it was scheduled for demolition in the 
early 1990s, a grassroots organization called S.O.S. 
(Save Our Station) raised money and purchased it for 
$25,000 in 1992. Over the next 12 years, the station 
was restored down to an archival paint color selected 
with the help of old photographs. In 2004, a formal 
dedication at the station revealed the efforts of the 
$1.5 million restoration project.  

In addition to a restaurant that opened in 2016, the 
Tamaqua Railroad Station serves as a heritage center 
and a cultural and economic hub in the downtown 
historic district. During the summer months, the 
station is home to free weekly concerts. 

The Tamaqua Historical 
Society Museum’s 
exhibits cover eastern 
Schuylkill County and 
highlight railroading, 
coal, town life and area 
sports. 

CI
ND

Y R
OS

S 



18 Vol. 47, No. 4 | www.pa-mag.com

Round Up

(clockwise from top)
The Owl Creek Reservoir 
has an upper and lower 
body of water separated 
by a dam. The railroad 
station has been  
retooled as a restaurant 
and heritage center.  
The Hometown  
Farmers Market is open 
on Wednesdays. 

CI
ND

Y R
OS

S (
2)

FLICKR.COM/PHOTOS/BRAD-DARREN/44404409275



Pennsylvania Magazine | July/August 2024  19

At the Tamaqua Arts Center on Pine Street, 
the arts are alive as evidenced by the art classes, 
gallery shows and cultural performances ranging 
from rock and roll concerts to burlesque. Those 
looking for a unique outdoor cinema experience 
can also check out the Mahoning Drive-in Theater 
in neighboring Mahoning Valley where camp, cult 
classic and horror films are featured on weekends 
and certain nights.

Transforming a Town
THIS OLD COAL TOWN of some 7,000 residents has 
transitioned well from its coal days. Its success 
can be traced to the Tamaqua Area Community 
Partnership (TACP), under the direction of Micah 
Gursky. Since 1995, Gursky and his team have been 
helping investors, small businesses and residents 
transform the community. TACP owns and operates 
the Tamaqua Arts Center, the Tamaqua Railroad 
Station and Hope and Coffee. 

At the nearby Tamaqua Historical Society Museum, 
exhibits covering eastern Schuylkill County highlight 
railroading, coal, town life and area sports. On the high 
walls of the re-purposed bank building are 24 large, 
captivating photographs. A local artist has created 
true-to-scale models of a coal breaker, complete with 
sounds, lights and movement. Other exhibits include 
a 100-year-old kitchen, an 1848 blacksmith shop, a 
barbershop and an undertaker’s shop. Ornate doll 
houses replicate the mansions in downtown Tamaqua. 

Visitors will also discover the extensive collection 
of local artist John Scott, whose work includes 3,000 
original Valentine’s Day cards sold by Gibson Card 
Company. Scott painted each scene and wrote the 
verses for the cards. 

Weekends in Tamaqua will find locals and visitors 
browsing Tink’s Antiques on South Railroad Street. A 
downtown fixture for multiple generations, the store 
is crowded with treasures, gleaned from cleanouts and 
estate sales and housed throughout the historic 1910 
warehouse, which comes complete with a working 
freight elevator.

Gastronomical Delights
MY WEEKEND IN TAMAQUA is made more memorable 
by the food and sweets I can sample, including 
homemade ice cream at two family-owned parlors, 
Leiby’s and Heisler’s. The latter, which is nestled in 
a nearby valley, features mini-golf and huge purple 
martin houses whose residents dip and dive catch-
ing insects and entertaining customers while they 
enjoy their treats. 

The only anthracite coal-fired Italian bread brick 
oven in America can be found at Padora’s Italian 
Bakery in Tamaqua. Crusty Italian bread and rolls 
take just 10 minutes to bake in the 700-degree oven, 

and Padora’s produces more than 100,000 loaves 
of bread a year for area grocers and caterers. It also 
donates loaves of bread to Toys for Tots and other 
charitable causes. 

While I had a wonderful grilled cheese sandwich 
at the Wheel on East Broad Street when I visited, it 
closed this past autumn. Gimbel’s, a farm to table eat-
ery, is planned to open in its place, operated by Megan 
and Aaron Gimbel of Gimbel Farms LLC. Their farm 
has pasture-raised beef and will be extending their 
popular food truck offerings within the new brick 
and mortar restaurant.

Another favorite Tamaqua restaurant is La Dolce 
Casa, owned by the Picones. Members of the family 
speak with such a delightful Italian accent that along 
with their delicious authentic food, a visit there feels 
as if you have been transported to Italy. Both the 
dishes and portion sizes are memorable. If you go at 
Christmastime, the restaurant is decked out with so 
many lights that the interior looks as if it’s straight out 
of the holiday movie “Elf.” Attached to the restaurant 
is a small Italian bakery and market where homemade 
gelato and Italian baked goods are sold.

On Wednesdays, the neighboring Hometown 
Farmers Market is open. It features authentic food, 
including Slovokian baked nut and poppy seed roll 
called kolach, raisin-filled cookies from Soltzfus Bak-
eries and Rakaczewski’s potato pancakes. An antique 
motor is used to churn out homemade ice cream at the 
market, and the aroma of baking cinnamon buns at 
Misty Mountain Bakery attracts a line of eager buyers.

 
IT’S NEAR THE END OF MY WEEKEND, and on the outskirts of 
town, I walk along the Owl Creek Reservoir on Owl 
Creek Road, built with two dams. The lower dam is the 
oldest, originally made with rubble masonry in 1883. 
It was rebuilt in 1928, and at that time the reservoir 
supplied Tamaqua’s drinking water. The upper dam 
was added in 1921. The two lakes were opened to the 
public as a low-impact recreation area in 2002. Tow-
ering spruce forests line the two-mile loop circling 
the lower lake. In addition to picnicking or strolling, 
visitors can participate in catch-and-release fishing 
or kayaking at the lakes. In the summer months, the 
Tamaqua Library offers yoga classes amongst the 
fragrant, soft-needled forest.

“There is vitality in Tamaqua,” Gursky tells me. “You 
can really feel it when you travel through town. What 
we have done to improve the lives of our residents is 
also the same reason to come for a visit.” 

Now, with the addition of the Bischoff Inn, you can 
prolong the fun and stay the weekend.

The website choose-happiness.org is designed to help 
residents and visitors alike connect to the community 
of Tamaqua and all it has to offer. 

—Cindy Ross of New Ringgold, Schuylkill County, is a frequent contributor.



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
                           Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 
September 16, 2024 - 7:30 p.m. 

301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 
www.bellefonte.net 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER (Council President Kent Bernier) 
The September 16, 2024 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 
p.m. 
 
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
 
III. ROLL CALL/MEMBERS PRESENT – ALL PRESENT TONIGHT 
 

Mr. Kent Bernier  
President,North Ward 

Ms. Shawna McKean  
West Ward   

Mr. Randy Brachbill  (via zoom) 
South Ward 

Ms. Rita Purnell 
North Ward 

Ms. Deb Cleeton  
South Ward 

Ms. Johanna Sedgwick  
West Ward  

Ms. Barbara Dann  
Vice-President, South Ward 

Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey  
West Ward  

Mr. Doug Johnson  
North Ward 

Mr. Christian Larson   
Junior Council Member 

Mayor Buddy Johnson  
At Large 

 

   
STAFF PRESENT  Mr. William Witmer, Police Chief  
    Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 
    Mr. Don Holderman, Assistant Borough Manager 
    Ms. Julie Brooks, Public Works Assistant Superintendent  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

• Tosti-Vasey requested to discuss applying for the County Liquid Fuels Funds Grant. Mr. 
Stewart commented that this item will be on the agenda for the next meeting to be held 
October 7th, 2024.  She also noted one correction to the agenda, in the Consent Agenda the 
minutes are listed with the date August 5th. The actual date for review is September 3rd, 
2024.  

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

September 16, 2024 

Page 2 

 

 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENT - Agenda Items and Comments (Oral) 

• NONE 
 
 
VI.  COMMUNICATIONS (Written) 

• Letter to Bellefonte Borough from Stan Wallace requesting to not be reappointed for Sewage 
Enforcement Officer Services for 2025. No council action requested. 
 

• Centre County Hazard Mitigation Plan Updates. Dates for Elected Officials included and Public 
Open House to be held October 17th, 5pm – 7pm at the Willowbank Building, Centre 
County Emergency Operations Center, Room 9. No council action requested. 

 
 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA (will be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise noted) 
 
Consent Agenda includes the following items: 
 

1. Finance Budget V. Actual August 2024 will be in the next packet 

2. Finance Budget V. Actual Summary August 2024 will be in the next packet 

3. General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes September 3, 2024 

4. Finance Treasurer’s Report August 2024 will be in the next packet 

5. Finance Voucher summary August 2024 will be in the next packet 

 
Brachbill motioned and Dann seconded to approve the Consent Agenda items 1-5. Tosti-Vasey 
amended the September 3rd minutes, public comments, with added names and agencies. 
Motion to approve Consent Agenda items 1-5 listed above, with amendments, carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 
 

VIII. REPORTS   
Mayor Johnson  

• Mayor Johnson reminded residents to enjoy fall by shopping local and enjoying our 
community.  
 

Junior Council Member Report 

• No report tonight. Mr. Larson will have a report for next meeting.  
 



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

September 16, 2024 

Page 3 

 

Police  (Acting Chief Witmer) 

•  August 2024 report 
o The department attended the “National Night Out” sponsored by Spring 

Township at Giant. 
o The department also attended “Girl’s Week” at the Centre County Camp Cadet. 
o Annual Night Shoot and (new) Annual Bellefonte School District Familiarization 

Tour  
 
Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 
1. Recommended for approval (Specific motions are stated in the OCA memo): 

• NONE 
 

2. Administrative Approvals:  

• NONE  
 

3. Items of interest:  

• NONE 
 

4. Zoning: 

• NONE 
 

Liaison Reports  (Reports were submitted) 
Comments/Additions:  

• Mr. Brachbill commented that the Spring Creek Watershed Commission meeting 
will be held Wednesday September 18, 2024 at 7pm in College Township. 

• Centre Region Code had a meeting to discuss public safety but the report was not 
included in tonight’s packet.   

 
 
IX.  CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
 

• Bellefonte Borough Chief of Police Position. Council may consider promoting Acting Police 
Chief William Witmer to the Permanent Police Chief Status upon a formal offer and 
acceptance.  
 
Tosti-Vasey motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve a permanent police chief position 
offer to Acting Police Chief William Witmer. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

September 16, 2024 

Page 4 

 

• Notice of Retirement from Assistant Borough Manager Don Holderman. This letter is 
being provided to council as informational. Don has worked closely with borough council 
over his tenure. He has been with the Borough since and last day will be Friday, October 
4th. No formal council action requested. Mr. Johnson read a statement offering his 
thanks and well wishes to Mr. Holderman in his retirement.  Several other council 
members expressed their thanks to Don for his commitment and service to our 
community. Mr. Stewart presented a power point that highlighted Mr. Holderman’s 
service to our Borough.  

o Mr. Holderman has contributed to many projects during his years of service to 
the borough, including: 

▪ Lighting at the little league field 
▪ Development of Krouse Park 
▪ Development of Masullo Park 
▪ Installation of an accessible fishing pier at Masullo Park 
▪ Decorative furnishings at Masullo Park 
▪ John Montgomery Field upgrades, Governor’s Park 
▪ Restroom Renovations, Governor’s Park 
▪ Tree management, Governor’s Park 
▪ New pavilions, Governor’s Park 
▪ Installation of the Liberty Swing, Governor’s Park 
▪ New playground equipment, Governor’s Park 
▪ New playground equipment and press box, Parkview Heights 
▪ Pedestrian walkway/railroad bridge, Tallyrand Park 
▪ New playground equipment, Tallyrand Park 
▪ Extension of stone wall along Tallyrand Park and Spring Creek 
▪ New paint, Gazebo and Brick Walkway Memorial, Tallyrand Park 
▪ Insulation and Winterization of Restrooms, Tallyrand Park 
▪ Expansion of Tallyrand Park and Memorial Fountain, Tallyrand Park 
▪ Bridge installation over Big Spring, Tallyrand Park 
▪ Resurfacing of the bridge, Tallyrand Park 
▪ Decorative furnishings, Tallyrand Park 
▪ Decorative furnishings, Railroad Park 
▪ Projects and improvements at the Musser Lane Composting Facility 
▪ Stormwater Management, Parkview Heights 
▪ N. Allegheny Street Streetscape/Treescape Project 
▪ S. Allegheny Street/W. Bishop Street/S. Spring Street Streetscape Project 
▪ Improved stormwater management, parking lot, Gerry Lane 
▪ North, South, West Parking Lot renovations 
▪ Installation of ornamental traffic lights 
▪ Improved lighting and stamped crosswalks, Central Business District 
▪ Street tree planting and updated parking meters, Central Business District 
▪ New kiosk for parking lot, and installation of EV charging stations 
▪ Decorative furnishings, streetscape projects 



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

September 16, 2024 

Page 5 

 

▪ Raised crosswalks and improved pedestrian safety, S. Potter Street 
▪ Waterfront Walkway Project (tree planting) 
▪ Armory Building upgrades and improvement projects 
▪ Stone Wall repair, Big Spring 
▪ Employee Handbook Personnel Manual 
▪ Managed millions of grant dollars    
  

• FEMA SAFER Grant summary documents enclosed. A special thank you to our Consultant, 
Nick Caputo and Finance Director Lori McGowan for their management of this Federal 
$500K four (4) year grant. 
 

• Bee Keeping Ordinance Draft. Consider approval to move ahead with scheduling a public 
hearing for this Zoning Ordinance Amendment. Council Action requested.  
 
Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to schedule a public hearing for a Bee Keeping 
Ordinance/Zoning amendment. Discussion included a question regarding selling honey 
from home hives. It was clarified that this issue would be reviewed. Roll call vote. Motion 
carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

• Water Service Line Inventory Update. The survey is to be submitted to PA DEP by October 
16th, 2024. Reminder to water system customers to take a picture of where their water 
line enters their home. Go to bellefonte.net to send it in.  There are more details on the 
website if homeowners have questions. Homeowners may also call the Borough office at 
814-355-1501 for more assistance. This does not apply to homes built after 1991. No 
council action is requested. 

 
 
X. NEW BUSINESS 

• Minimum Municipal Obligations for Pensions, 2025 Budget. Minimum Municipal 
Obligations for Borough pension programs must be acted on before the end of September 
for the upcoming budget year. Council must also re-adopt the Resolution related to the 
Police Pension program each year. 
o Resolution No. 09162024-01 

• Police - $25,435 

• N1 - $ 0 

• N2 - $136,770 
 



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

September 16, 2024 

Page 6 

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve the Minimum Municipal 
Obligations and Resolution No. 09162024-01 as stated. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

• Resolution 09162024-02 Supporting HB 451 related to funding for municipalities with 
relatively high percentages of tax-exempt properties.  
 

Cleeton motioned and Dann seconded to adopt the Resolution 09162024-02 
Supporting HB 451 with or without modifications. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 
 
 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 
This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on this meeting 
agenda. Speakers shall identify themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the 
Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes maximum. 
 

• Ms. Tosti-Vasey asked about posting the furniture and other surplus items from the 
Armory building for bid. The items have not been posted but they will be posted within 
the next few weeks.  
 

• Ms. Dann reminded Council that the PA Boroughs Association conference is October 11-
13, 2024 in Lancaster, PA.  

 
 
XII. ADJOURNMENT   
 
Dann motioned and Johnson seconded to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 8:10pm.  















































































































Junior Council Member Report
October 7, 2024

- Junior Council Member Report will be provided at the first meeting of every month.

- Please contact me if you have any questions or topics you would like me to look into.

School Report:

- The student-run store, the Raider Corner, successfully trained and prepared 35 students

for their opening! The store had a great first week!

- Homecoming week was a success! (Elaborate)

- Over half of the school participated in Day of Caring!

- Our Gold Out Game raised over $2000, and our MINI-THON is at 40% of our total goal.

Extra Curricular Report:

- We have seen lots of involvement in our clubs! (e.g. over 100 participants in NHS)!

- The Football team was successful in their pursuit of the Curtain Bowl trophy by beating

Bald Eagle in a recent game!

- Other sports have been having successful seasons so far!



MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Bellefonte Borough Council 
FROM:  Gina Thompson: HARB, Zoning & Planning Administrator  
SUBJECT: Office of Community Affairs Update 
DATE:  For Council Meeting October 7, 2024 

 

 

PLANNING: 
 
The CCMPO will hold an Open House on Wednesday, October 9 to provide public input on the draft 
Active Transportation Plan. The times will be from 3:00 to 4:20 p.m. and 6:00 to 7:30 p.m. 
More information, including the draft plan, can be found here: www.crcog.net/centreatp. 
 
The Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission met on Thursday, September 19. I was unable to 
attend this meeting, but Doug Johnson and Dave Lomison were in attendance.  

• The Centre County Liquid Fuels Program 2025 is accepting applications until 5 pm on 
Friday, October 18, 2024.  

• Centre County Hazard Mitigation Plan (HMP) update:  
o The Mitigation Strategy and Capability Assessment Workshops – For local officials 

and stakeholders. 
o The Centre County HMP Public Open House – For the public. 

 
*more information found under COMMUNICATIONS in your packet.  
 
The next scheduled Planning Commission meeting is Monday, October 14 at 5:00 p.m. This 
meeting may be canceled as there are currently no SALDO projects for review.  
 
The next Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission meeting is Thursday, November 21 at 
6:00 p.m. at the Spring Township municipal office.  
 

 
ZONING: 

 
Zoning permit applications have been slow. Even when permit applications are slow, I’m 
addressing zoning questions or concerns via email and phone calls, and I work to keep records up 
to date. Additionally, I assist Steve in addressing nuisance complaints and work with Centre Region 
Code Administration on any Code related issues, complaints, or concerns. I am addressing sign and 
lighting violations in the downtown and commercial districts. 
 
 

HARB: 
 
HARB did not meet on September 24th and will not meet on October 8th. There continue to be 
administrative reviews and approvals of projects, but nothing that has needed to go before HARB.  
 
The next scheduled HARB meeting is Tuesday, October 22 at 8:30 a.m. As of now, I have not 
received any applications for review.  
 

http://www.crcog.net/centreatp


A few updates that I informed the board of via email:  
 
 PHMC has extended all of their FY22 CLG grants until 12/31/24.  The Amendments are 

running through the commonwealth signature process, and should be receiving a signed 
document as soon as possible.  
 

 I submitted the executed renewed CLG Master Grant Agreement to PHMC for the next 
contract period: January 1, 202 thru December 31, 2029. 

 
 Jessica Stuck from Landsmarks SGA has not gotten back to me with the HARB revisions on 

the draft guidelines that were discussed at the August 13, 2024 HARB meeting. After I sent 
her the revision email on 8/13, I didn't hear from her. I then pinged her on August 30 and 
she responded that she should have the draft within the next couple of weeks. I pinged her 
again on September 20. I have not received a response. I have been in communication with 
Frank Grumbine, PHMC Coordinator, about Landmark's deliverables and lack of follow-up. 
I'm not sure if there's anything to be done, except to be patient and work with them to finish 
out the contract / guidelines.  

 
Administrative Approvals since August 13, 2024 
  

• 421 North Spring (Harvey) – COA issued 8/14/2024: Replacement of existing shingles 
with Owens Corning Duration, color: Estate Gray 

 
• 126 West Bishop (PA Rural Water Association) – COA issued 8/21/2024: Replace 

gutters and downspouts with new white gutters. Re-shingle front porch roof with matching 
color architectural shingles. Add porch rain gutter. 

 
• 138 West Bishop (PWRA) – COA issued 8/21/2024: Replace gutters and downspouts with 

new white gutters. Re-shingle roof with Owens Corning 50-year architectural shingle, color: 
Onyx Black. 

 
• 128-130 West Bishop (PWRA) – COA issued 8/21/2024: Replace gutters and downspouts 

with new white gutters. Re-shingle roof and front porch roof with Owens Corning 50-year 
architectural shingle, color: Onyx Black. 

 
• 124 South Allegheny (Herlocher) – COA issued 8/22/2024: Replace existing vinyl white 

windows with Pella Lifestyle Series Double-Hung Aluminum EnduraClad Wood Exterior 
windows. Color: brown 32 windows in total, 19 exterior – front side and back of building. 

 
• 102 South Allegheny (CC Courthouse) – COA issued 8/23/2024: Exterior repairs and 

maintenance. All work is being done in kind and/or to match existing. Physical samples and 
brochures on file as the Borough office 

o Replace front stair nosing in front of monument 
o Replace caulking on front steps 
o Replace expansion joints 
o Replace caulking around doors and windows 
o Paint stucco portion of building 
o Painting of columns 
o Refinish front entrance doors 

 



• 329 East Curtin Street (Envinity Inc. / Rohleder) – COA issued on 9/3/2024: Envinity 
Inc. to install 7.65 kW DC grid-tied roof mounted solar array consisting of (18) Q Cells 
Q.Tron Black 425watt solar modules and (18) Enphase IQ8M microinverters. Placement will 
be on gable roof of garage, facing South toward main house. 
 

• 104 N Allegheny (Bellefonte Brick Studio) – COA issued on 9/4/2024: Business sign for 
Bellefonte Brick Studio. Size: 2’ x 12’ | Colors: Black, white, red. Description: raised lettering 
“Bellefonte Brick Studio” in black with red “Brick” logo. Materials: Aluminum with 
composite plastic core with 3D lettering. Location: Above window where previous sign was 
installed. Maker: The Sign Stop, State College PA. 

 
• 329 East Curtin Street (Rohleder) – COA issued on 9/6/2024: Roof: Existing gray shingles 

will be replaced with Owens Corning Duration, color: Desert Rose. Siding: Existing 
aluminum on the house and vinyl on the garage will be replace with LP® 
Smartside®  Expertfinish® siding. 

 
• 302 East Curtin (Maness) – COA issued on 9/20/2024: Replacement of 14 windows on the 

first, second and attic levels. Current windows are not original: aluminum / vinyl from 
appox.1980s replacement. House photos from 1930's and 1950's show double hung 
windows with single panes above and below: This configuration will be maintained as will 
all window opening sizes. Window frame thickness will be slightly narrower than existing 
replacement windows - approx. 1/4"". Color will be white. Contractor: R.W. Johnson Home 
Improvements to install Alside Mezzo window as in attachments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If you have any questions about the current projects, or would like additional information, please do 
not hesitate to contact Gina Thompson at gthompson@bellefontepa.gov. 



1

Ralph Stewart

From: Ralph Stewart
Sent: Wednesday, October 2, 2024 8:44 AM
To: Kent Bernier; Barbara Dann; Doug Johnson; Randy Brachbill; Joanne Tosti-Vasey; 

Shawna McKean; Johanna Sedgwick; Rita Purnell; Deborah Cleeton; Buddy Johnson; Rick 
Jacobs; Tom Bathgate

Cc: Frank Halderman; Doug Johnson; Joe Beigle; Joseph Falcone, PA Rural Water; Greg 
Brown; Jon Eaton (jee2@psu.edu); D_DELOTTO@comcast.net; Matt Auman; Julie Brooks

Subject: Big Spring Cover Project - Installing Wells in Talleyrand Park Expanded Area - 
Permission from Borough Council 

Hello all, 
 
This email will be included in the October 7th council meeting packet as communications from the Bellefonte Borough 
Authority to Borough Council.  On behalf of the Bellefonte Borough Authority, it is an attempt to keep the lines of 
communication open regarding the Big Spring cover project and its potential impact on the expanded area of Talleyrand 
Park.  The information/events are outlined below: 

 The Bellefonte Borough Authority only meets one time per month 
 The Authority’s goal for the Big Spring is to beautify its appearance for residents and visitors alike while meeting 

all mandated water protection requirements  
 Protecting the unfiltered spring water is mandated through PA DEP and the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act  
 In recent months, the Authority in consultation with their engineers, settled on a concept of installing wells near 

the Big Spring to draw the same spring water out of the ground and to feed it into the distribution system.  The 
well water/spring water would not be in touch with any surface contaminants and therefore not need to be 
filtered.  Consequently, the Big Spring pond could be uncovered because the drinking water comes from the 
wells, not the Big Spring pond.   

 Authority representatives presented the Drinking-Water-from-Wells-Concept to PA DEP representatives at the 
regional office in Williamsport on Tuesday, September 17th.  The concept was favorably received although it was 
made clear that the process for permitting wells had many hurdles with anyone of them causing the project to 
be infeasible.   

 The Bellefonte Borough Authority at their regular meeting on Tuesday, October 1st, received a recap of the 
meeting with PA DEP representatives.  The Authority engineer stated the initial testing (which includes GIS work, 
hydrogeological work, and geophysical survey data collection would cost approximately $53,000.  All of this 
work would be on the land adjacent to the Big Spring or on the expanded area of Talleyrand Park.  Additionally, 
the wells would need to have a buffer area of up to 400’ meaning no sewer lines, no storm drains, etc.  This 
survey work is estimated to take about two months to complete.   

 The Authority unanimously approved a motion to have the survey work completed after getting approval from 
Bellefonte Borough council, the owner of the Talleyrand Park expanded area 

 A motion will be placed on the October 7th council agenda seeking permission to have the above-described 
survey work completed on the Borough’s property.   

 
 
We know that the bandshell representatives are scheduled for a 30 minute update in the October 7th work session.  We 
are still planning for this update.   
 
If you have a question, please do not hit “reply to all”.   We do not want to turn this update into a discussion.   
 
Thank you, 
Ralph   



2

 
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
301 North Spring Street STE 200 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 
 



1

Ralph Stewart

From: Mays, Michelle <mimays@pa.gov>
Sent: Friday, October 4, 2024 9:50 AM
To: Ralph Stewart
Subject: RE: [External] RE: SR 3006 A04, Mill Race, Borough property

Good morning Ralph,  
 
Is the below clip what you were looking for?  The area in red is the area of the required 357 square feet of right-of-way 
needed. 
 

 
Michelle L. Mays, P. E. | Project Manager 
PA Department of Transportation 
Engineering District 2-0 
70 PennDOT Drive  | Clearfield PA  16830 
Phone: 814.765.0465 | Fax: 814.205.1194 
www.PennDOT.pa.gov 
 
CONNECT WITH PENNDOT 
Facebook | Twitter | Instagram | Linkedin | YouTube 
 
 
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION  
The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to whom it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any 
use of this information other than by the intended recipient is prohibited. If you receive this message in error, please send a reply e-mail to the sender and 
delete the material from any and all computers.  Unintended transmissions shall not constitute waiver of the attorney-client or any other privilege. 
 



2

From: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, October 3, 2024 5:26 PM 
To: Mays, Michelle <mimays@pa.gov> 
Subject: RE: [External] RE: SR 3006 A04, Mill Race, Borough property 
 
Hi Michelle, 
 
Would you please send a sketch of the 357 square feet area?  It would help me explain where it is located. 
 
Thank you, 
Ralph  
 
 
 
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
301 North Spring Street STE 200 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 
 

From: Ralph Stewart  
Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2024 8:13 AM 
To: Mays, Michelle <mimays@pa.gov> 
Subject: RE: [External] RE: SR 3006 A04, Mill Race, Borough property 
 
Thanks Michelle!  Will do!  
 
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
301 North Spring Street STE 200 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 
 

From: Mays, Michelle <mimays@pa.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2024 8:09 AM 
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: RE: [External] RE: SR 3006 A04, Mill Race, Borough property 
 
Yes, by all means discuss it at your meeting in let me know. 
 
Michelle L. Mays, P. E. | Project Manager 
PA Department of Transportation 
Engineering District 2-0 
70 PennDOT Drive  | Clearfield PA  16830 
Phone: 814.765.0465 | Fax: 814.205.1194 
www.PennDOT.pa.gov 



3

 
CONNECT WITH PENNDOT 
Facebook | Twitter | Instagram | Linkedin | YouTube 
 
 
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION  
The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to whom it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any 
use of this information other than by the intended recipient is prohibited. If you receive this message in error, please send a reply e-mail to the sender and 
delete the material from any and all computers.  Unintended transmissions shall not constitute waiver of the attorney-client or any other privilege. 
 

From: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2024 8:08 AM 
To: Mays, Michelle <mimays@pa.gov> 
Subject: [External] RE: SR 3006 A04, Mill Race, Borough property 
 

ATTENTION: This email message is from an external sender. Do not open links or attachments from unknown senders. To 
report suspicious email, use the Report Phishing button in Outlook.  

Hi Michelle, 
I can discuss this with borough council. I meet informally with some of them next week prior to the October 7th 
meeting.  Could I have until that meeting to get back to you?   
 
Thanks, 
Ralph  
 
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
301 North Spring Street STE 200 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 
 

From: Mays, Michelle <mimays@pa.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, September 26, 2024 7:30 AM 
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: SR 3006 A04, Mill Race, Borough property 
 
Good morning Ralph,  
 
Our right-of-way folks asked if the Borough would be willing to donate their property that is to be acquired at the park 
for the SR 3006 bridge replacement project? It is only 357 square feet of permanent right-of-way so that our structure 
can be within the departments right-of-way and 2,568 square feet of temporary construction easement needed to 
complete the work. 
 
Let me know your thoughts.  I guess it is just an additional form that needs completed if the land is donated. 
 
Thanks,  
Michelle 
 
Michelle L. Mays, P. E. | Project Manager 



4

PA Department of Transportation 
Engineering District 2-0 
70 PennDOT Drive  | Clearfield PA  16830 
Phone: 814.765.0465 | Fax: 814.205.1194 
www.PennDOT.pa.gov 
 
CONNECT WITH PENNDOT 
Facebook | Twitter | Instagram | Linkedin | YouTube 
 
 
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION  
The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to whom it is addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any 
use of this information other than by the intended recipient is prohibited. If you receive this message in error, please send a reply e-mail to the sender and 
delete the material from any and all computers.  Unintended transmissions shall not constitute waiver of the attorney-client or any other privilege. 
 




	WORK SESSION --AGENDA 10072024
	WORK SESSION--MOU sent to bandshell group from borough 10062023
	WORK SESSION--EXHIBIT A  Documentation checklist for MOU sent 10062023
	WORK SESSION--Funds Review for 2025 Budget
	COUNCIL MEETING--AGENDA 10072024
	COMMUNICATIONS--SCWC Sponsorship of CNET Coverage Req letter 2025_Bellefonte
	COMMUNICATIONS--CC Hazard Mitigation Plan workshops
	COMMUNICATIONS--CC Hazard Mitigation Plan workshops
	COMMUNICATIONS--Open House Flyer

	COMMUNICATIONS--CCMPO ATP Open House flier
	COMMUNICATIONS--EMS Funding Letter 2025 Bellefonte
	COMMUNICATIONS--Spring Creek Watershed Commission 2025 dues Request
	COMMUNICATIONS--Article on Tamaqua Revitalization sent to Borough as an FYI, things that could be done in Bellefonte, tamaqua-pa-magazine-ja-2024-issue-
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.09162024 DRAFT
	CONSENT--Solicitor Stover Invoice
	CONSENT--Budget vs Actual Summary, August 2024
	CONSENT--Budget vs Actual, August 2024
	CONSENT--Treasurer's Report, August 2024
	CONSENT--Vouchers Summary, August 2024
	REPORTS--Jr. Council Member Report 10072024
	OCA--Memo to Council for meeting of 10.7.2024
	OLD BUSINESS--Bellefonte Borough Authority Permission Request
	NEW BUSINESS--Drawing of property, Penn DoT Donation Request
	Council Code of Conduct

